
CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

JANUARY 5, 2015 

6:30 P.M.  

                                                                  
 1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 2.  ROLL CALL / 

      INVOCATION /  Rabbi Donald Kunstadt, Springhill Avenue Temple 
 

     PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

 3.  APPROVE MINUTES:      Council Meeting Minutes / December 15, 2014   

 

       

4. REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 
A. FINANCE COMMITTEE – Fry  

 

B. BUILDINGS & PROPERTY  COMMITTEE -  Davis  

    

C. PUBLIC SAFETY -  Rudicell      

    

D. CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  -  Scott   

     

E. PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY – LeJeune           

 

 

 

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  
   A.  Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones   

    

B. Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway   

    

C. Industrial Development Board – Davis     

 

D. Library Board - Lake  

 

E. Planning Commission – Scott     
Review minutes / November 20

th
  

Review Staff Report / December 18
th

 meeting 

 
F. Recreation Board – LeJeune 

 

   G. Utility Board – Fry 

 

 

6. Mayor’s Report 

 

7. City Attorney’s Report 

 

8. Department Heads Comments 

 

9. City Clerk’s Report 

    a.)  Events Permit / Apollo’s Mystic Ladies / Mardi Gras / February 6, 2015 

    b.)  29
th
  Annual Baldwin County Martin Luther King Celebration / January 19, 2015 

 

 

 
January 5 2015 Council Meeting 1



 

 

COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                          JANUARY 5, 2015                                 PAGE   3 

 

 

10. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:   

 

 

 11. RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

 

RESOLUTIONS: 

a.) Authorize Participation with the City of Troy, AL in a Grant Application 

      to the AL Department of Environmental Management for Funds to Engage 

      the Southeast Recycling Development Council to Perform a Study of 

      Recycling in Alabama. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2015-01 

 

b.)  Authorizing the Mayor to Apply for a Grant for a First Responder Safe Room 

       for Public Works through the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP). . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2015-02 

 

 

 

ORDINANCES:  

 

          2
ND

    READ 
a.)  Annexation:  Provision Investment, LLC / Property Located West of the Estates of  

       Tiawasee Subdivision and Southeast of the Intersection of Park Drive and 

       Pollard Road. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2014-59        

 

b.)  ATRIP Project:  Roundabout CR 64 & CR 13 Baldwin County  

       Intergovernmental Project. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-60 

 

 

 

       1
ST

 READ 

a.)  Appropriation of Funds:  Fire Station #3 Renovations. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2015-01 

 

b.)  Amending Ordinance 2004-52 the City of Daphne’s Job Classification  

      Schedule. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2015-02 

 

12.    COUNCIL COMMENTS        

13.  ADJOURN 

 

 

 

January 5 2015 Council Meeting 2



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

CITY COUNCIL: 

COUNCILMAN RUDICELL   PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN LAKE    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN FRY    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN LEJEUNE   PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN DAVIS    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCIL PRESIDENT CONAWAY  PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

MAYOR: 

MAYOR HAYGOOD    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

CITY CLERK: 

REBECCA HAYES     PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 

JAY ROSS      PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

January 5 2015 Council Meeting 3



DECEMBER 15, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e1
 

                                                                                          

1.    CALL TO ORDER:  

There being a quorum present Council President Conaway called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.       

 

2.    ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

Pastor Charles Jackson with Macedonia Missionary Baptist Church gave the invocation. 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:    

Tommie Conaway; John Lake; Pat Rudicell Randy Fry; Ron Scott; Joe Davis. 

 

ABSENT:  Robin LeJeune. 

 

Also present:  Mayor Haygood; Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Sarah Toulson, Assistant City Clerk; Jay 

Ross, City Attorney; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; David McKelroy, Recreation Director; 

Tonja Young, Library Director; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director; Adrienne Jones, Planning 

Director; Battalion Chief Joey Holasz, Fire Department; Suzanne Henson, Senior Accountant/Treasurer; 

Ashley Campbell, Environmental Programs Manager; Michele Hanson, Public Works Administrative 

Assistant; Melvin McCarley, Public Works Supervisor; Officer Haag, Police Department; Tom Walker, 

Firefighter;  Dorothy Morrison, Beautification Committee and DRA; Larry Cooke, BZA; Don Ouellette, 

BZA; Mickey Boykin, Daphne Museum; Willie Robison, BZA; Al; Al Guarisco, Village Point 

Foundation; Kevin Boucher, Adams & Reese; Christian Miller, Mobile National Estuary Program. 

 

Absent: David Carpenter, Police Chief; Vickie Hinman, HR Director; James White, Fire Chief; Richard 

Merchant, Building Official; Michael Hoyt, Municipal Judge.  

 

3.    APPROVE MINUTES:    

December 1, 2014 Council Meeting Minutes 

Councilman Lake amended the November 17, 2014 minutes to clarify the reason for his resigning from 

the Finance Committee to include he disagreed with the procedure for appointing Councilman Fry as the 

chairman of the Finance Committee, as it went against the Council Rules of Procedure ordinance, and 

that there would be a super-majority on the committee.  

 

December 8, 2014 Council Work Session Minutes 

Councilman Lake amended the December 8, 2014 Council Work Session minutes to include his 

presentation on SOCRATA. 

 

 

PRESENTATION:   Mobile National Estuary Program / Mr. Christian Miller 

Mr. Miller updated council on projects stemming from the April rain event, and because the damage 

they need more money to do the job they said they were going to do on Joes’s Branch and D’Olive 

Creek.  Mr. Miller handed out material regarding the restoration status for these two projects which are 

spread out upon these minutes. 

 

 

January 5 2015 Council Meeting 4



DECEMBER 15, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e2
 

 

PRESENTATION:   Certificate of Appreciation / Melvin McCarley 

 

Mayor Haygood read and presented the certificate to Melvin as the Public Works Director, Richard 

Johnson, looked on.  Melvin is retiring after 27 years with the City of Daphne. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING:   

 

Annexation:   Provision Investment, LLC 

Property Located:   West of the Estates of Tiawasee Subdivision and 

Southeast of the intersection of Park Drive and 

Pollard Road 

Present Zoning:   RSF-2, Single Family Residential District, Baldwin 

County District 15 

Requested Zoning:   R-1, Low Density Single Family Residential District, City 

of Daphne 

Recommendation:    Unanimous favorable  

 

Mrs. Adrienne Jones, Planning Department Director,  gave the presentation.  Mr. Steve 

Pumphrey with Prebble-Rish representing the owner said that these lots would never be 

subdivided again, and is recorded on the plat.  There will never be an allowance of a through 

road from Pollard Road. 

 

Mayor Haygood said that the owner has given lot three to the city for stream restoration. 

 

Councilman Lake asked that the Public Hearing be recorded as verbatim. 

 

Mr. Pumphrey: The issue that came up was access, how to get to the property, and the fact 

that it went through an existing subdivision, and the agreement that has been made and agreed on 

by all parties is that the three (3) lots – the two (2) lots – that you see on the right hand side will 

never be divided again.  They will stay as they are, they will be accessed only from the access 

road at the bottom to the right, and there will never be an allowance of a road to come from 

Pollard Road over to these.  In other words they will never open up a through road to that.  That 

is what concerned parties wanted, and the owner agreed to that.  This three (3) lot subdivision 

would be approved with that note, and you can’t see the note on the plat, but up in the upper right 

hand corner that note is on there.  Representatives looked at that and agreed, and as he 

understands it all parties are now in agreement with that. 

 

 

January 5 2015 Council Meeting 5



DECEMBER 15, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e3
 

 

Councilman Lake: I am looking for the letter.  I thought we had a letter in here that The 

Estates of Tiawasee’s attorney had written. 

 

Mayor Haygood: It is page 27 of your packet. 

 

Mrs. Jones:  That letter is included just to provide you with information on the fact that 

there was opposition, however, at the meeting the attorney’s that is representing them were fine 

as long as the restrictions that Steve just went over were placed on the plat.  So that opposition is 

no longer opposition. 

 

Councilman Scott: A couple of issues involved there was an existing additional subdivision 

that came off the Estates of Tiawasee that the property owners of Tiawasee had filed a lawsuit, 

and it was to add an additional 40 some odd lots, is that right Steve---- 

 

Mr. Pumphrey: 47-48 lots 

 

Councilman Scott: There is a lawsuit pending, and the issue is, can a covenant or the use of 

that lot be changed by the person that controls, basically, the ability to change the covenants, and 

those are normally done by a property owners association, and when a development goes in he 

owns all the lots then he is the property owners association.  Our legal staff tells us that what 

they have done is legal.  This is a second example of it.  The fact that this is only going to be two 

(2) large parcels, and they have agreed not to subdivide it there was not the public outcry of 

opposition, but I think they just wanted to make sure that they were not compromising their legal 

position by not at least pointing it out.  I think that is the best I can describe it.  That lawsuit is 

going to court. 

 

Mr. Ross: It is set for trial January 8
th

 before Judge Bishop. 

 

Councilman Lake: The question I am asking is I see the size of the two (2) lots there and it 

looks like if they go up to Park Drive the third lot what density are those zoned, and can they be 

changed in density? 

 

Mrs. Jones: The proposed zoning is R-1, Single Family, and that is two (2) units per acre.  

They are not proposing to subdivide the property any further as I understand. 

 

Mr. Pumphrey: Yes, we are not proposing to subdivide that plot, in fact, that lot as I 

understand was being looked at from the city’s standpoint of owning that property, but the 

person dividing the property has no plans of dividing that site. 

 

Councilman Lake: The two (2) smaller lots or two (2) smaller areas they are in themselves 

single units, single lots, and they won’t be subdivided into smaller lots or even multi-family 

dwellings or anything like that? 

 

January 5 2015 Council Meeting 6



DECEMBER 15, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e4
 

 

Mr. Pumphrey: That is correct. 

 

Councilman Scott: Madam Chairman that is the note they put on the plat saying that it would 

never be subdivided, and if you notice the current zoning from the county is R-2, and they are 

asking for R-1 which is more restrictive than what the county has.  They could put more units per 

acre as it stands right now if they were to keep it in the county than they would be allowed to by 

bringing it into the city.  I truly think it is a win/win.  They had a unanimous recommendation 

from the Planning Commission.  The lawsuit will decide these issues one way or the other soon.  

I think you look at annexed property is in the best interest of Daphne to add to it.  Are we 

protecting the people, the existing folks around it, does it meet our comprehensive plan, which I 

think it does, the other side might say it doesn’t, every time you have something of the 

comprehensive plan you are going to have an argument on two (2) sides. 

 

Councilman Lake: The only reason I am asking the question is I see one is 12.5 acres and one 

is 13.4 acres, and I wanted to make sure that we don’t have coming back at us six months down 

the road or a year down the road or 10 years down the road.  They can’t subdivide doesn’t mean 

they can’t put multi-family dwellings there or that kind of thing.  There is protection that that 

won’t happen.  

 

Mr. Pumphrey: With R-1 zoning we could not which is what, hopefully, you will zone it 

as with the recommendation so we could not come back with multi-family.  The zoning would 

prevent that. 

 

Councilman Lake: I have had in my own personnel district that same situation come up where 

multi-family dwellings issue was over-ridden, and put in an area, and I just want to make sure 

that that is not the situation with this.  I would hate to open the Pandora’s box again that we had 

in the past. 

 

Mr. Pumphrey: The owner is here and I can vouch for him that his plan is to only build 

single family homes on these two (2) lots. One each. 

 

Councilman Davis: Yes, the lot one (1) and lot two (2), how do you get access to those two (2) 

lots? 

 

Mr. Pumphrey: The agreement that he has to one of the lots in the existing estates allows 

an easement to go through that lot. 

 

Councilman Davis: And he owns that lot? 

 

Mr. Pumphrey: He owns the lot. 

 

Councilman Davis: Is that lot three (3)? 

 

 

January 5 2015 Council Meeting 7



DECEMBER 15, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e5
 

 

Mr. Pumphrey: No, that is lot two (2). 

 

Councilman Davis: The map doesn’t show how you access these. 

 

Mr. Pumphrey: (Mr. Pumphrey went over to the projector screen and pointed out the 

easement.)  There is an easement on this entire lot to access both those lots. 

 

Councilman Davis: And to utilize that easement what road is that? 

 

Mr. Pumphrey: I think it is called Lamhatty. 

 

Councilman Davis: So it is currently a cul-de-sac? 

 

Mr. Pumphrey: That is correct at present. 

 

Councilman Davis: There is not a road there at the bottom? 

 

Mayor Haygood: Madam Chairman I just want to reference the comment that was made by 

Mr. Pumphrey in response to Councilman Lake in regard to lot three (3).  There are some 

proposed, as part of stream restoration projects being done on that lot three (3), and I don’t know 

if we have a formal agreement, Ashely Campbell could speak about that a little better, but the 

owner, as I understand it, has agreed to deed or give the city lot three (3) so we can utilize grant 

money on that particular piece of property.  So you will see that in a more protective state 

without development. 

 

 

4.    REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

 A.   FINANCE COMMITTEE – Fry 

The December 8
th

 minutes are in the packet. 

 

Treasurers Report / November 2014 

 Total Unrestricted Funds - $9,576,208 

 Total City Funds - $17,523,948   

 

Sales and Use Tax Collection / November 2014 

$1,073,290.88 was collected for November 2014: 

 YTD Variance over Budget - $35,246.90  +  1.6 % 

 Percent change from last year’s collections   + 2.5%  

 

Lodging Tax Collections / November 2014 

The collections for November 2014 were $74,581.63 which is up $30,668.71 from November’s 

2014’s collections of $43,912.92.  

 YTD Variance under Budget:    (4,115.74) ;   -.4% 

 Percentage change from last year’s collections:  +36.9 % 

January 5 2015 Council Meeting 8



DECEMBER 15, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e6
 

 

 

B.   BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE - Davis 
The December 1

st
 minutes are in the packet.  The next meeting will be January 5

th
 at 4:30 p.m. 

 

C.   PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE – Rudicell  

The December 10
th

 minutes are in the packet.  The next meeting will be the third Monday of January at 

4:30 p.m. 

 

D.  CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE – Scott 

The December 10
th

 minutes are in the packet.  The next meeting will be the third Monday of January at 

5:30 p.m. 

 

E.   PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE – LeJeune 

There was no meeting in December.  The next meeting will be the first Monday of January at 

5:30 p.m. 

 

 

5.    REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS: 

      A.   Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

The next meeting will be January 8
th

 6:00 p.m. 

 

B.   Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway 

The December 3
rd

 minutes are in the packet.  There will not be a meeting in December. 

 

C.   Industrial Development Board – Davis 

There will not be a meeting in December, and the next meeting will be January 26
th

.  

 

D.   Library Board – Lake 

There will not be a meeting in December.  The next meeting will be January 8
th

 4:00 p.m.  Councilman 

Lake asked how things were coming with hiring a computer tech for the Library. 

 

Mayor Haygood said they are waiting on Archer to develop a job description for Council to approve. 

 

Councilman Scott said that the Spanish Fort Library will be opening soon and asked if anyone has 

looked to see the impact this will have on Daphne’s Library. 

 

     E.   Planning Commission – Scott 

The next Planning Commission meeting will be December 18
th

 at 5:00 p.m. 

     

 F.   Recreation Board – LeJeune  

No report. 

 

    G.   Utility Board – Fry 

The October 29
th

 minutes are in the packet.   There will not be a meeting in December. 

January 5 2015 Council Meeting 9



DECEMBER 15, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e7
 

 

 

6.    Mayor’s Report 

Mayor Haygood updated Council on the following: 

1. The Fire Department has applied for two (2) different grants, and one was for some personal 

protection equipment in the amount of $113,000, both of the grants have a 10% city match if 

awarded.  The second grant is for a ladder truck in the amount of $725,000, which was in the capital 

budget, and they saw the opportunity for that and applied. He thinks there is a fairly quick turn-

around, and he thinks they will know if they are awarded the grant in February.  He gave kudos to 

the department, and mentioned that some of the awareness came about with discussion with Adams 

& Reese’s under the new Grant/Lobbying contract.  There was a tight deadline, and the Fire 

Department did all the heavy lifting on the grant.   

2. The Tree Lighting and Christmas Parade were wonderful, and a lot of credit goes to different people 

on the Christmas Committee and Public Works, especially.  He really wanted to thank them.  He has 

had compliments tonight from people attending the meeting on how good things look downtown.  

Olde Towne Daphne is establishing itself as a landmark for the holiday Christmas light tours 

amongst families. 

3. There has been some discussion regarding the AT&T agreement, and he apologized for not being at 

the meeting when it was discussed.  There was some talk about the PEG, (Program, Education and 

Government channel) which they are not currently leveraging.  They have had discussions about 

doing some broadcasting of council meetings on the internet, but an opportunity came with some 

discussion with Dr. Foster, principal of Daphne High School, to find a way, maybe, to have them 

have a class or a program that enables students to come and handle the broadcast of these events if 

they want to leverage the PEG channel.  That would certainly require purchase of some equipment 

by the City of Daphne in order to do that, but he thinks they are keenly interested in having those 

students be able to operate cameras and handle editing.  A lot would have to happen.  One of the 

outcomes of those discussions was a realization that they did not have the talent to train those 

students, and they might need a little mentoring, and he had a subsequent discussion with one of the 

local TV stations where they said “count us in” if they are able to put together a program whereby 

students can handle the broadcasting of the city’s events.  It is an early discussion, and he would 

certainly like to know if Council was interested in pursuing that, and putting together a team to help 

make that a reality if they so desire. 

4. Mayor Haygood wanted to inform Council that the upcoming “Mayor’s New Year’s Eve Ball” being 

held this year at Daphne Civic Center  is not a city affiliated event.  He wanted to make sure that he 

addressed it, but more important there is a couple of the Daphne High School Quarterback Club that 

wanted to say a few words to Council about it, but he wanted to give some background information 

saying that some in the community came to him three (3) or four (4) months ago, and were interested 

in having an event for New Year’s Eve, and said they feel that they did not have an event that suited 

our community, and came up with the concept of having a New Year’s Eve Ball and asked him if he 

would be interested in participating and helping them with it, and he said by all means, and that is as 

far as they took it at this point in time.  December came approaching quickly, and then a lot of 

decisions had to be made in terms of booking, and making the event a success.  The Daphne High 

School Quarterback Club stepped up and has really helped organize the event.  They have handled 

the booking of the Civic Center, they have secured a band, the Tip Tops  

 

January 5 2015 Council Meeting 10



DECEMBER 15, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e8
 

 

will be playing, and they have really championed this cause so it is going to be an inaugural event, 

and hopes it will be around on an annual basis. 

 

Mr. Frank Pierce invited Council to attend the ball.  He said this is a great opportunity to showcase 

Daphne.  He said Mayor Haygood has tickets that may have been distributed or will soon be 

distributed to Council. 

 
7.  City Attorney’s Report 

Mr. Ross commented on the AT&T agreement saying he is working with the Mayor and Gigi Armbrecht 

and some people with her group, and they should have that proposed agreement to Council at the next 

meeting.  Carrying on with comments by the Mayor on having television cameras or whatever the mode 

is to transmit council meetings off the AT&T U-Verse system there is an opportunity, if Council wants 

to do now or in the future, to offset the cost of that equipment, whatever that may be, it can be a CNN 

version of equipment, it can be a camera from Best Buy, but to prepare to have that equipment available 

there is a cost to it depending how much you want to spend where from $5-$10,000 or more.  The city 

can charge a one percent (1%) fee to customers for the purchase of that either for a defined time or as 

long as the life of the franchise agreement.  That could be as much as $25-$30,000 a year depending on 

the growth of the U-Verse system in the City of Daphne.    Some of Council may have seen an e-mail in 

response from the Mayor’s question about what constitutes gross receipts for the purpose of calculating 

the franchise fee, and they are waiting on Gigi and the legal counsel for AT&T in Alabama to respond, 

but they won’t have an answer before next Monday, and as soon as he gets that he will get with the 

Mayor and try to have something ready for the next meeting.  The Tiawasee lawsuit is pending and set 

for a non-jury trial on Thursday, January 8
th

 before Judge Bishop. 
 

8.   Department Head Comments 

David McKelroy – Recreation Director – thanked everyone who participated in the parade, and said 

there was more staff that participated this year.  He thanked Chris Myers and Terry Thompson for 

providing cars for the parade.  He is also thankful for the  portable bathroom it is a 10 seater. 

 

Richard Johnson – Public Works Director –  thanked the Mayor and Council for their drive to make 

Christmas Open House and parade a community event.  The snow was special, and it was fun to see the 

community excited.  He reminded everyone of the tree trimming by Riviera Utilities on Highway 98 for 

the next two (2) weeks. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

January 5 2015 Council Meeting 11



DECEMBER 15, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e9
 

  

9.   City Clerk’s Report  

      1.)   MOTION:  To reset a Public Hearing date for January 20, 2015 and approve advertising          
                                    to consider the following: 

        a.)  Pre-Zoning:     George Kalasountas 

              Property Located:  On the south side of U.S. Highway 90 at Renaissance Boulevard 

              Present Zoning:  RSF-1, Single Family Residential District, Baldwin County 

      District 15 

              Requested Zoning:  B-2, General Business / R-7(T), Townhouse / R-1, Low Density 

       Single Family Residential District, City of Daphne 

              Recommendation:  Three motions were made and failed which resulted in an   

                                               unfavorable recommendation  

 

       b.)  Annexation:   George Kalasountas 

              Property Located:  On the south side of U.S. Highway 90 at Renaissance Boulevard 

              Recommendation:   Favorable 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to set a Public Hearing date for January 20, 2015 and approve adverting to 

consider the following: 

a.)  Pre-Zoning:                     George Kalasountas   

      Property Located:   On the south side of U.S. Highway 90 at Renaissance Boulevard   

      Present Zoning:   RSF-1, Single Family Residential District, Baldwin County, 

                                                      District 15   

      Requested Zoning:   B-2, General Business / R-7(T), Townhouse / R-1, Low Density Single                                                                                

                               Family Residential District, City of Daphne 

      Recommendation:   Three motions were made and failed which resulted in an  

unfavorable recommendation     

 

b.)  Annexation:   George Kalasountas   

       Property Located:   On the south side of U.S. Highway 90 at Renaissance Boulevard    

       Recommendation:   Favorable 

 

Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

        2.)  Events Permits 

               a.)  Prodisee Pantry Turkey Trot / 5K and 1 Mile Fun Run / October 24, 2015 

               b.)  Scott Ward Memorial “Fit for Duty” / 5K / November 21, 2015 

               c.)  The Jubilee Festival and the attached requests / September 26 , 27, 2015 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Fry to approve the Events Permits for:  a.) Prodisee Pantry 

Turkey Trot / 5K and 1 Mile Fun Run / October 24, 2015    b.)  Scott Ward Memorial “Fit for 

Duty” / 5K / November 21, 2015     c.)  The Jubilee Festival and the attached requests / 

September 26 , 27, 2015.   Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

MOTION CARREID UNANIMOUSLY 

January 5 2015 Council Meeting 12



DECEMBER 15, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e1
0

 

 

    

3.)   MOTION: To change the following committee meeting schedules as follows starting 

January 1, 2015: 

1
st
 Monday of the Month                                    

Buildings and Property  Committee meeting / 4:30 p.m.  

Public Works Committee meeting / 5:30 p.m. 

 

2
nd

 Monday of the Month 

   Finance Committee meeting / 4:30 p.m. 

 

   3
rd

 Monday of the Month 

   Public Safety Committee meeting / 4:30 p.m. 

   Code Enforcement & Ordinance Committee meeting / 5:30 p.m. 
 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to change the following committee meeting schedules as 

follows starting January 1, 2015: 

 

1
st
 Monday of the Month   

Buildings and Property  Committee meeting / 4:30 p.m.  

Public Works Committee meeting / 5:30 p.m. 

 

2
nd

 Monday of the Month 

Finance Committee meeting / 4:30 p.m 

 

.3
rd

 Monday of the Month 

Public Safety Committee meeting / 4:30 p.m. 

Code Enforcement & Ordinance Committee meeting / 5:30 p.m. 

 

Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Fry to amend the motion to include that if a committee 

meeting falls on a holiday it will move to the Tuesday after the holiday. 

 

VOTE ON THE AMENDED MOTION 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

VOTE ON THE ORIGINAL MOTION AS AMENDED 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

 

January 5 2015 Council Meeting 13



DECEMBER 15, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e1
1

 

 

 

10.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Mr. Rod Drummond – Ridgewood Drive – spoke regarding Council speaking into the microphones so 

the audience can hear what they are saying. 

 

 

 

11.    RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

         
a.) Bid Award:  Fuel /  Davison Fuels & Oil. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2014-61 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Resolution 2014-61.  Seconded by 

Councilman Davis. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2014-61.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

 

ORDINANCES: 

 

 
          1

ST
   READ 

a.)  Annexation:  Provision Investment, LLC / Property Located West of the Estates of  

       Tiawasee Subdivision and Southeast of the Intersection of Park Drive and 

       Pollard Road. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2014-59        

 

b.)  ATRIP Project:  Roundabout CR 64 & CR 13 Baldwin County  

       Intergovernmental Project. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ../Ordinance 2014-60 

 

ORDINANCES 2014-59 AND 2014-60 WERE 1
ST

 READ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

January 5 2015 Council Meeting 14



DECEMBER 15, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e1
2

 

 
12.    COUNCIL COMMENTS 

Councilman Fry said that the Christmas parade was great, and there was a good crowd.  He thanked 

everyone involved and wished everyone a merry Christmas. 

 

Councilman Scott said the Christmas parade was great and wished everyone a merry Christmas. 

 

Councilman Davis said that Melvin was a character, and said to count the Davis’s in for the Mayor’s 

Ball. He mentioned the Fire stats saying there were 177 rescue calls for October, and 1,679 for the year, 

and said they need to tell the 1
st
 responders thank you.  He said it was great to live in the City of 

Daphne.  It is a big town with small town features.  He is glad to serve with the council.  He asked 

citizens to continue giving their input, and wished everyone a merry Christmas. 

 

Councilman Lake said that he will miss Melvin, and that the tree lighting and parade were fantastic.  He 

reminded everyone that the Martin Luther King celebration is in its 29
th

 year.  He wished everyone a 

merry Christmas and happy New Year and Happy Hanukkah. 

 

Mayor Haygood thanked council for their hard work that they put into the city. 

 

Council President Conaway enjoyed riding in the Christmas parade.  She wished everyone a joyous 

holiday season and a happy New Year. 

 

13.   ADJOURN: 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Fry to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS, THE MEETING ADJOURNED AT 

8:05 P.M. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,                                   Certification of Presiding Officer 

                               

                                        

__________________________________   _____________________________   

Rebecca A. Hayes,     Tommie Conaway,     

City Clerk        

Council President 

January 5 2015 Council Meeting 15



January 5 2015 Council Meeting 16



January 5 2015 Council Meeting 17



January 5 2015 Council Meeting 18



January 5 2015 Council Meeting 19



January 5 2015 Council Meeting 20



January 5 2015 Council Meeting 21



January 5 2015 Council Meeting 22



January 5 2015 Council Meeting 23



January 5 2015 Council Meeting 24



January 5 2015 Council Meeting 25



January 5 2015 Council Meeting 26



January 5 2015 Council Meeting 27



January 5 2015 Council Meeting 28



January 5 2015 Council Meeting 29



January 5 2015 Council Meeting 30



January 5 2015 Council Meeting 31



January 5 2015 Council Meeting 32



January 5 2015 Council Meeting 33



January 5 2015 Council Meeting 34



January 5 2015 Council Meeting 35



January 5 2015 Council Meeting 36



January 5 2015 Council Meeting 37



CITY OF DAPHNE 

RESOLUTION 2015-01 

 

WHEREAS, a recent study by the Southeast Recycling Development Council determined that 

Alabama is home to more than 26 manufacturers who rely on recycled content feedstock; and 

WHEREAS, these companies generate more than $6.6 billion in annual sales and employ 

10,700 Alabama citizens directly working in the manufacture of recycled content products, 

WHEREAS, if Alabama cities recycled just 10% more materials each year, the potential 

economic impact would equate to over 1,400 new jobs.   

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne seeks to better understand the opportunities and impacts of 

recycling in Alabama by supporting a study that includes: 

• An economic impact analysis of the recycling industry in Alabama, 

• A measurement of the impact the ADEM grant program has had on material recovery and 

how that feeds job growth, economic impact and environmental impact,   

• An online mapping tool for Alabama citizens and businesses to locate nearby collection 

points for various materials. It will include all access points, MRFs, drop offs, non bin 

recycling points.  The tool will include the ability for website visitors to add their special 

collection events.  SERDC will also prepare an operation manual for site data 

maintenance. 

• An Alabama recycling website to communicate the results of the study and other 

recycling information for Alabama, 

• A design for intentional locations for a hub and spoke system to service the state’s 

processing needs. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

RESOLVES to participate with the City of Troy in a grant application to the Alabama 

Department of Environmental Management for funds to engage the Southeast Recycling 

Development Council to perform such a study with no obligation of expenditure of funds from 

the City of Daphne. 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this ____________ day of ___________________, 2015. 

 

        ___________________________ 

        Dane Haygood, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

January 5 2015 Council Meeting 38



 

 

RESOLUTION 2015-02 
 
Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to Apply for a Grant for a First Responder Safe Room 

for Public Works through the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP)  
 
WHERE AS, the City of Daphne received 16.5" of rainfall for the period of April 29-30, 2014; 
and 
 
WHERE AS, on May 2, 2014 affected Alabama Counties, including Baldwin County, received a 
Presidential Disaster Declaration - FEMA-4176-DR; and 
 
WHERE AS, Disaster Declaration number FEMA-4176-DR made available Individual 
Assistance, Public Assistance and Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) funds available; 
and 
 
WHERE AS, the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) provides grants to states and local 
governments to implement long-term hazard mitigation measures after a major disaster 
declaration with the purpose of the HMGP is to reduce the loss of life and property due to 
natural disasters and to enable mitigation measures to be implemented during the immediate 
recovery from a disaster; and 
 
WHERE AS, currently Public Works First Responders are housed in a non-fortified structure 
during hurricanes and are exposed to wind hazards during the critical preparation and first 
response to a wind based disasters; and  
 
WHERE AS, the City of Daphne has been selected for Grant Funding for a safe room at Public 
Works through HMGP and subject to complete application submittal due January 30, 2015; and 
 
WHERE AS, on December 1, 2014, the City Council by Unanimous Motion, authorized the 
Mayor to enter into agreement with EnCompass360, the firm that will develop the HMGP Grant 
Application for the City; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Daphne that: 

1.) Authorize the Mayor to sign and submit the Phase 1 Hazard Mitigation Grant Application 
to FEMA; and  

2.) Authorize the Mayor to execute any agreements and/or documents between all involved 
parties (FEMA, State EMA, County EMA, EnCompass360) associated with the Hazard 
Mitigation Grant for the Public Works Safe Room.  
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 
ALABAMA, THIS    DAY OF                          , 2015. 
 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 
AN ALABAMA MUNICIPAL CORPORATION 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
              
REBECCA A. HAYES, CITY CLERK DANE HAYGOOD, MAYOR 

January 5 2015 Council Meeting 39



ORDINANCE NO. 2014-59  
 

FOR THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN PROPERTY TO THE CORPORATE 

LIMITS  

OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

 

Property located West of the Estates of Tiawasee Subdivision and Southeast of the 

Intersection of Park Drive and Pollard Road 

Provision Investment, L.L.C.  

 
  
 BE IT ORDAINED BY CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

 WHEREAS, the owners of the property described in Section 2 of this Ordinance have 

signed and filed a written petition with the City Clerk of the City of Daphne, Alabama, requesting 

that such property be annexed to the corporate limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, all of such property is located and contained within an area contiguous to 

the corporate limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama and does not lie within the corporate limits 

or police jurisdiction of any other municipality; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, said petition contains an accurate description of the property or territory 

proposed to be annexed together with a map of said property showing its relationship to the 

corporate limits of the City of Daphne; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, said petition has been presented to the Planning Commission of the City of 

Daphne at a Special Called meeting on October 30, 2014 and unanimous favorable 

recommendation was approved for the City Council to consider said request for annexation and 

said property shall be zoned R-1, Low Density Single Family Residential District; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, after proper publication, a public hearing was held by the City Council on 

December 15, 2014 concerning the petition for annexation; and, 

  

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama has determined that it is 

in the best interest of said City that the property described in Section 2 hereof be annexed to the 

corporate limits of the City of Daphne, and that all the requirements of Sections 11-42-21 through 

11-42-24, Code of Alabama, 1975, as amended have been complied with by said Petitioner. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, as follows: 

 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 

 

COMMENCE AT A CONCRETE MONUMENT AT THE SOUTHWEST 

CORNER OF LOT 25, THE ESTATES OF TIAWASEE, AS SHOWN BY 

MAP OR PLAT THEREOF RECORDED AT SLIDE 2408-B & C, 

PROBATE RECORDS, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA AND RUN 

THENCE NORTH 03 DEGREES 20 MINUTES 40 SECONDS WEST, 

ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 25, A DISTANCE OF 273.94  

 

 

 

January 5 2015 Council Meeting 40



ORDINANCE 2014-59          ANNEXATION/PROVISION INVESTMENT              PAGE 2 

 

 

FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 03 DEGREES 19 MINUTES 55 SECONDS 

WEST, ALONG THE WEST LINE OF LOT 24 OF SAID ESTATES OF 

TIAWASEE, A DISTANCE OF 304.03 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST 

CORNER OF LOT 18, THE ESTATES OF TIAWASEE; THENCE RUN 

NORTH 03 DEGREES 21 MINUTES 17 SECONDS WEST, ALONG THE 

WEST MARGIN OF THE ESTATES OF TIAWASEE, A DISTANCE OF 

688.64 FEET TO A CONCRETE MONUMENT AT THE NORTHWEST 

CORNER OF SAID THE ESTATES OF TIAWASEE, SAID POINT BEING 

ON THE SOUTH MARGIN OF LAKE FOREST UNIT 12, AS SHOWN BY 

MAP OR PLAT THEREOF, RECORDED AT SLIDE 651-B, PROBATE 

RECORDS, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89 

DEGREES 39 MINUTES 51 SECONDS WEST, ALONG SAID SOUTH 

MARGIN OF LAKE FOREST UNIT 12, A DISTANCE OF 1758.38 FEET; 

THENCE RUN SOUTH 00 DEGREES 05 MINUTES 45 SECONDS WEST, 

A DISTANCE OF 842.22 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTH MARGIN 

OF PARK DRIVE; THENCE RUN NORTH 87 DEGREES 47 MINUTES 37 

SECONDS EAST, ALONG SAID NORTH MARGIN, A DISTANCE OF 

41.96 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EAST MARGIN OF POLLARD ROAD; 

THENCE RUN SOUTH 00 DEGREES 09 MINUTES 02 SECONDS WEST, 

ALONG SAID EAST MARGIN, A DISTANCE OF 403.21 FEET; THENCE 

RUN SOUTH 89 DEGREES 40 MINUTES 21 SECONDS EAST, A 

DISTANCE OF 1792.72 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. TRACT 

CONTAINS 51.33 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, AND LIES IN SECTION 9, 

TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH, RANGE 2 EAST, BALDWIN COUNTY, 

ALABAMA. 

 

 

 SECTION 1: CONSENT TO ANNEXATION. The City Council of the City of 

Daphne, Alabama does by this Ordinance assent to the annexation of the property described in 

Section 2 of this Ordinance to the corporate limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama, and does by 

the adoption of this Ordinance, extend and rearrange said corporate limits to embrace and include 

such property. 

 

SECTION 2: THE PROPERTY. That property requested to be annexed into the City of 

Daphne is described in Exhibit "A", attached hereto and made a part of this Ordinance as if fully 

set out herein. 

 
 SECTION 3: MAP OF PROPERTY. The property hereby annexed to the City of 

Daphne, Alabama, is set forth and described in Exhibit "B" and attached hereto a map of the 

property showing its relationship to the corporate limits of the municipality of the City of Daphne 

and made a part of this Ordinance. 

 

 SECTION 4: PUBLICATION. This Ordinance shall be published as required by 

Section 11-42-21, Code of Alabama, 1975, as amended, and the property described herein shall 

be annexed to the corporate limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama, upon such publication. 

 

 SECTION 5: PROBATE COURT.  A description of the property described in this 

Ordinance shall be filed in the Office of the Judge of Probate of Baldwin County, Alabama, as 

required by Section 11-42-21, Code of Alabama, 1975, as amended.  
 

 

 

January 5 2015 Council Meeting 41



 
ORDINANCE 2014-59              ANNEXATION/PROVISION INVESTMENT              PAGE    2 

    

 

 
 ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA on this _____ day of ___________, 2015. 

 

 

     

                                                                                              

________________________________                                                      

       Dane Haygood, 

       Mayor 
        

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, 

City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

January 5 2015 Council Meeting 42



January 5 2015 Council Meeting 43



January 5 2015 Council Meeting 44



ORDINANCE 2014-60 
  

ATRIP PROJECT:  ROUND-A-BOUT @ COUNTY ROAD 13 & 64: 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL PROJECT WITH BALDWIN COUNTY 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-44 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget on 

September 23, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget, the City Council 

has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and made 
a part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Round-A-Bout at CR13 & 64 is an approved Alabama Transportation 

Rehabilitation and Improvement Program (ATRIP)  project and grant monies are available 
for this project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City can entered into an agreement with Baldwin County for construction 

of a Round-A-Bout at CR13 &  CR64 for 10 Construction /50% CE&I cost share  of the 
match monies required by the grant; and 
 
WHEREAS, the bids have been received and the cost for the City and the County is 

$215,959/each; and 
 
WHEREAS, Funds in the amount of $43,338.50 for engineering were previously approved 

in Ordinance 2013-19 and paid from the 2012 Construction Fund (total project cost 

$1,777,041.65); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Round-A-Bout Improvements are needed for enhanced traffic flow; and 
   
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that  

 Funds in the amount of $215,959 from the 2012 Construction Fund are 
appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget for   Round-A-Bout at 
County Road 13 & 64 

 Total remaining project cost of $1,690,364.65  for construction/engineering of which 
ALDOT will reimburse 80% construction with the County and the City’s share each 
being 10% construction & 50% CE&I  (City’s portion- $215,959 and County’s 
portion $215,959 ); and 

 The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute any documents required in order for the 
City of Daphne to participate in such intersection project. 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2014. 
                   
          

_________________________________ 
                                                                          Dane Haygood , Mayor 
ATTEST: 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  

January 5 2015 Council Meeting 45



ORDINANCE 2015-01  
 
 

APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS:  Fire Station #3 Renovations 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-44 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2015 
Budget on September 23, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, certain improvements and repairs are needed at Fire Station #3 to 
prepare the station to be operational; and 
 
WHEREAS, the adopted budget included an appropriation for $200,000; and 
 
WHEREAS,  after bids were received for Station #3 Renovations the total project 
cost for the low bid is $505,233; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds be transferred from the General Fund to the Capital Reserve 
Fund are hereby appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget in 
the amount of $305,233 for the Fire Station #3 Renovations.   
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS               day of                      , 2015. 
 
     

_________________________________ 
                                                                          Dane Haygood, Mayor 
          
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  

January 5 2015 Council Meeting 46



ORDINANCE 2015-02 
 

An Ordinance Amending Ordinance 2004-52 Job Classification Schedule 
 

 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 2004-52 was approved and adopted on January 3, 2005 to establish the City 

of Daphne Job Classification Schedule; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City has established the need for the following new positions: 

 

        GRADE 

 IT Technician      14 / NE   

 Safety Coordinator     18 / E 

 Young Adult Librarian    18/E 

 Marketing Coordinator    14/NE 

 Deputy Public Works Director   29/E 

 

And 

 

WHEREAS, the City has established the need to reclassify the following existing positions;       

         GRADE 

 Director, Convention Visitor’s Bureau and Civic Center   32/E         

 Accountant, Senior       23/E 

 Environmental Programs Manager     22/E 

 

And 

 

WHEREAS, the City has established the need to add the following classifications to the City of 

Daphne Job Classification Schedule: 

 

        GRADE 

 City Administrator     40/E 

 Management/Business Analyst   27/E 

 Communications Manager    24/E 

 Communications & Marketing Officer   24/E 

 Public Works Inspector    17NE 

 Facilities Manager     22/E 

 Community Outreach Specialist   14/NE 

 Code Enforcement Senior    14/NE 

 

And 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that there is a need for these new positions, the existing 

positions reclassifications and new classifications, and;  

 

 

 

January 5 2015 Council Meeting 47



ORDINANCE 2015-02                            JOB CLASSIFCATION SCHEDULE                          PAGE   2 

 

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, that 

the City of Daphne’s Job Classification Schedule is updated to reflect the noted new positions, existing job 

reclassifications and new classifications as itemized in the attached list and made a part hereof. 

 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, this ______ day 

of ______________________, 2015. 

 

 
         

_________________________________ 

                                                                     Dane Haygood, Mayor 
       

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  

January 5 2015 Council Meeting 48



CITY OF DAPHNE ALABAMA

                JOB CLASSIFICATION LISTING-GRADE ORDER

GRADE CODE TITLE FLSA GR

2 7545 SAIL SITE DRIVER N 2

7550 SAIL SITE WORKER N 2

2568 SCHOOL CROSSING GUARD N 2

4 0151 CUSTODIAN N 4

4521 GREENHOUSE ASSISTANT N 4

5 0028 EVENTS ASSISTANT N 5

7533 FITNESS ASSOCIATE N 5

7540 SAIL SITE MANAGER N 5

6 7532 ATHLETIC PROGRAM ASSOCIATE N 6

8070 LIBRARY AIDE N 6

0005 OFFICE ASSISTANT N 6

0141 PARTS TECHNICIAN N 6

0143 PUBLIC SERVICE WORKER N 6

0144 SOLID WASTE WORKER N 6

7 0152 CUSTODIAL SUPERVISOR N 7

8 8041 LIBRARY SERVICES TECHNICIAN N 8

9 0010 ADMINISTRATIVE TECHNICIAN N 9

0030 SALES ASSISTANT N 9

2549 ANIMAL SHELTER TECHNICIAN N 9

January 5 2015 Council Meeting 49



10 0015 ADMINISTRATIVE SECRETARY N 10

0026 EVENT SERVICES SUPERVISOR N 10

11 1043 ACCOUNTING TECHNICIAN N 11

2548 ANIMAL CONTROL OFFICER N 11

2330 BUILDING MAINTENANCE TECHNICIAN N 11

2551 COMMUNICATIONS OFFICER N 11

2546 CORRECTIONS OFFICER N 11

0128 HUMAN RESOURCES TECHNICIAN N 11

5545 PLANNING COORDINATOR N 11

0142 PUBLIC SERVICE WORKER, SENIOR N 11

0145 SOLID WASTE WORKER, SENIOR N 11

12 2245 CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER N 12

2030 MUNICIPAL COURT MAGISTRATE N 12

13 0020 ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT N 13

4040 EQUIPMENT OPERATOR N 13

4540 GREENHOUSE COORDINATOR N 13

0521 HUMAN RESOURCES ASSISTANT N 13

7050 MECHANIC N 13

6850 PERMIT TECHNICIAN N 13

0146 SOLID WASTE COORDINATOR N 13

14** 1105 IT TECHNICIAN N 14

0123 CREW LEADER N 14

8075 LIBRARY SERVICES COMPUTER TECHNICIAN N 14

7053 MECHANIC, SENIOR N 14

0459 PUBLIC WORKS/EMA ASSISTANT N 14

0025 EXECUTIVE SECRETARY N 14

** 2240 CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER, SENIOR N 14

** 0065 COMMUNITY OUTREACH SPECIALIST N 14

** 0056 MARKETING COORDINATOR N 14

January 5 2015 Council Meeting 50



16 0023 ASSISTANT CITY CLERK N 16

0027 AUDIO-VISUAL MANAGER N 16

5540 GIS TECHNICIAN N 16

8050 LIBRARY SUPV, CIRCULATION E 16

8040 LIBRARY SUPV, TECHNICAL SERVICES E 16

17 1023 ACCOUNTANT E 17

6840 BUILDING INSPECTOR N 17

2545 CHIEF CORRECTIONS OFFICER N 17

2550 COMMUNICATIONS SUPERVISOR N 17

0010 JAIL ADMINISTRATIVE TECHNICIAN N 17

2022 MUNICIPAL COURT ADMINISTRATOR E 17

** 6845 PUBLIC WORKS INSPECTOR N 17

0050 SALES MANAGER E 17

6870 SITE CONTAINMENT INSPECTOR N 17

18 2332 BUILDING MAINTENANCE SUPERVISOR N 18

8068 CHILDREN'S LIBRARIAN E 18

7023 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE SUPERVISOR N 18

4522 GROUNDS SUPERVISOR N 18

0450 OPERATIONS MANAGER N 18

7515 PARKS MAINTENANCE SUPERVISOR N 18

0130 PAYROLL/BENEFITS COORDINATOR E 18

5550 PLANNER E 18

4023 PUBLIC WORKS SUPERVISOR N 18

8045 REFERENCE LIBRARIAN E 18

** 0135 SAFETY COORDINATOR E 18

** 8066 YOUNG ADULT LIBRARIAN E 18

19 7530 RECREATION PROGRAMS COORDINATOR E 19

0160 REGISTERED NURSE N 19

January 5 2015 Council Meeting 51



20 7525 ATHLETIC COORDINATOR E 20

4024 PUBLIC WORKS SUPERVISOR, SENIOR N 20

1522 REVENUE OFFICER E 20

22** 6880 ENVIRONMENTAL PROGRAMS MANAGER E 22

1100 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY COORDINATOR E 22

** 2334 FACILITIES MANAGER E 22

23** 1022 ACCOUNTANT, SENIOR E 23

24** 0055 COMMUNICATIONS & MARKETING OFFICER E 24

** 0060 COMMUNICATIONS MANAGER E 24

26 0022 CITY CLERK E 26

27 6022 SUPERINTENDENT, PUBLIC WORKS E 27

5530 DEPUTY DIRECTOR, COMMUNITY DEVEL. E 27

** 0110 MANAGEMENT/BUSINESS ANALYST E 27

29 8020 DIRECTOR, LIBRARY E 29

7520 DIRECTOR, RECREATION E 29

0036 DIRECTOR, CIVIC CENTER E 29

** 6024 DEPUTY DIRECTOR, PUBLIC WORKS E 29

32** 0036 DIRECTOR, CVB & CIVIC CENTER E 32

1020 DEPUTY DIRECTOR, FINANCE E 32

36 6822 BUILDING OFFICIAL E 36

1020 DIRECTOR, FINANCE E 36

0520 DIRECTOR, HUMAN RESOURCES E 36

5535 DIRECTOR, PLANNING E 36

January 5 2015 Council Meeting 52



38 6019 DIRECTOR, PUBLIC WORKS E 38

40** 0100 CITY ADMINISTRATOR E 40

** Job Descriptions & Pay Established or Revised, Not Council Approved Yet

0100 CITY ADMINISTRATOR E 40

0110 MANAGEMENT/ BUSINESS ANALYST E 27

0036 DIRECTOR, CVB & CIVIC CENTER E 32

0060 COMMUNICATIONS MANAGER E 24

0055 COMMUNICATIONS & MARKETING OFFICER E 24

8066 YOUNG ADULT LIBRARIAN E 18

6880 ENVIRONMENTAL PROGRAMS MANAGER E 22

1022 ACCOUNTANT, SENIOR E 23

6845 PUBLIC WORKS INSPECTOR N 17

1105 IT TECHNICIAN N 14

2334 FACILITIES MANAGER E 22

6024 DEPUTY DIRECTOR, PUBLIC WORKS E 29

0065 COMMUNITY OUTREACH SPECIALIST N 14

0056 MARKETING COORDINATOR N 14

2240 CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER, SENIOR N 14

0135 SAFETY COORDINATOR E 18

January 5 2015 Council Meeting 53


	AGENDA
	ROLL CALL SHEET
	Council Minutes
	Backup to Council Minutes - December 15 2014
	Planning Commission Minutes
	Event Permit - Apollo's Mystic Ladies
	2015-01 - RES -  Regional Grant Participation - Troy University
	2015-02 - RES - Authorizing the Mayor to Apply for a  Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP)
	2014-59 - ORD - ANNEXATION - PROVISION INVESTMENT, LLC
	Backup - 2014-59 - ORD 
	2014-60 - ORD - Round-A-Bout at CR13  CR64 - BC-ALDOT Intergovernmental Project
	2015-01 - ORD - FS#3 Renovations
	2015-02 - ORD - Job Classification Schedule 2015 (5)
	Backup to 2015-02 - ORD



